                     WICK ST. FERGUS CHURCH OF SCOTLAND
                                            GUIDE BOOK

It is intended that this guide should be used by visitors walking round the church in a clockwork direction.   

Wick St. Fergus Church was formed when Wick Bridge Street Church and Wick Old Parish Church were brought together in Union in 2009.

The church on this site before the present building stood at right angles to the “new” church and faced the present church gates.  It had been  built between 1791 and 1799 and was condemned by  Caithness Presbytery in 1816, because of subsidence, but it stood 

until the new church was opened in 1830 after which the materials of which it was constructed were sold off in lots as advertised in the columns of Inverness newspapers. 

In the Sermon on the Mount, Christ compared the man who built his house on the Rock with him who built his house upon the sand. In 1822 when digging for the foundation of the western gable of the church, the builder came upon running sand, and it was said that excavations had to be made to the depth of 6.5m.(22ft.) in order to reach a solid foundation. Here the simile ends for this church really is “built upon the rock” due to shape of the ground available in the churchyard,  prior to the previous church being demolished. 

The  building has  probably the widest unsupported roof of any church in Scotland with the rafters 19.5m.(65ft.) x 37.5cm.(15ins.)  x 25cms(10ins) formed from the finest Russian Red Pine specially selected  by Captain Munro of Wick, Master of the Wick registered vessel “Bittern”. These timbers were too long to negotiate the narrow streets of the town so they had to be floated up the river to the side of the churchyard.

      Church dimensions:-  Length               27.0m.     (90ft.)

                                         Width                 22.0m.     (72ft.)

                                         Height(Ceiling) 10.2m.      (33ft.)

                                         Roof Ridge        18.0m.      (60ft)

                                         Tower                23.0m       (77ft.)

                                         Spire                  35.0m.      (120ft.)

The design of the structure incorporated small spires which were intended to be placed on the north/west and south/east corners of the building,  and on the four corners of the tower,  but the builder was not allowed to add them in case the extra weight would cause the foundations to sink.

The previous church building, which stood at right angles to this “new” church and was built facing the present church gates, built (1791-1799) was condemned by Caithness Presbytery in 1816, because of subsidence, but it stood until the new church was opened in 1830 after which the was sold off in lots as advertised in the columns of Inverness newspapers.                                                   

In 1991, the Kirk Session and the Minister Rev. R.S. Frizzell, advised the congregation of some structural changes which were soon to require necessary works. The rising  costs of maintaining both the church and the hall on the opposite side of the High Street (currently used by Wick Pipe Band)  meant that the latter would have to be sold. Alterations to the church building planned flooring across structure at balcony level, the resulting first floor area to be used as the Sanctuary for weekly worship.The original ground floor became a new hall, kitchen, toilets, creche and a smaller general purpose hall. These ideas, initially, met with    some resistance, but it soon  became clear that no other option would solve the problems facing the church..

The Rev. K. Warner, Minister of Halkirk and Westerdale, a former architect, was asked for his advice. He observed that the approach to the main entrance was on a downward slope and he commented “I rejoiced when they said unto me let us go up to the House of God”. The approach to the church was reconstructed to an upward incline greatly reducing the number of steps to the new Sanctuary.

Remembrance Sunday 1993 was the last service to be held in the “old” church building.

Work started the following day and the results were considered a great success. On Sunday the fifteenth of May 1994, with all work completed, the gathered congregation, led by one of the elders, Bill Harper, carrying the Bible, walked  in procession  from the hall across the street to the newly refurbished church for the service of re-dedication.

The depiction of Jesus and the fishermen on the inner glass doors was created by the eminent glass engraver Mr Dennis Mann, who chose to incorporate in his design flora as found on the north head of Wick Bay. 

The chairlift, behind the doors to the right, can accommodate either a  person seated or a person in a wheelchair.   This, along with a disabled access toilet in the foyer on the same level and a platform lift to the left of the Sanctuary stairs enable those persons less mobile to access the Sanctuary.  

Standing in the foyer, note how the wide staircase brings into focus the Communion Table, chairs, pulpit, and pipe organ framed by the beautiful tall stained glass windows.       Arriving on the Sanctuary floor you become aware of just how wide the unsupported ceiling really is.  It’s  the widest of any church in Scotland!




THE SANCTUARY                                                

The Communion Table, and its three Chairs, were made locally in McEwens furniture factory, and were gifted by the Henderson Family from Rosebank House in 1912 and 1924. The two large glass flower vases were gifted by the Anderson family from Louisburgh Street.

The mellow two manual (with pedals) Pipe Organ was made by Wadsworth  Bros. of Manchester and was installed in 1883- not many years after the General Assembly of the Church of Scotland decided that music could be used in their churches.

The adjustable height reading desk in the pulpit was gifted in memory of  Alexander Robertson(elder1929), the rector of Wick High School.   A variety of coloured pulpit falls and matching Bible markers were gifted by  various members of the congregation to mark the passage of the liturgical year. The dust cover was made by Mrs Rena Shearer, a Sunday School  teacher and choir member.

In the 1960s and 1970s the stained glass panels in the surrounding windows,  which allow lots of light to come in around them, were gifted by congregational members and organisations.

Other donations include:-

the small Celtic Cross on the Communion Table was given by John   Gray who died in 2008; the white stone Baptismal Font was gifted by the Wick Old Parish    Church Sunday School in 1934.

The Wooden Font to the right of the Communion Table has a plate on it listing all those lost from Wick Bridge  Street Church during World War II

The ancient (possibly14th century) stone Font from the old pre-Reformation  (1560) Kirk of St. Fergus was restored to this church in 2011.

The reading desk is in memory of Miss Sutherland, said to be the first woman from Wick to become a graduate from a university.  She was a  languages teacher, and long time Sunday School Teacher. The Bible on the reading desk was donated in memory of Mr. T.L. Rosie (elder 1937) and sometime Session Clerk.

In the area above the main staircase is a mural depicting the “Raising

   of the Temple” done by a local artist in 1994.

The two hymn boards on the pipe organ pillars were gifted in 1946 in  memory of Wm. Gillespie(deacon1906)  - they are now used to show page numbers in the Pew bibles from which the Bible readings are being taken for the service.

The two clocks were gifted in memory of Wm. More (elder1937) who was a well known Harbour Pilot.

The hymn boards on either side of the church were donated by an anonymous donor  in 1994.

The window vases were made by John O Groats Pottery and donated by  Mrs. Margaret Clyne, Field Farm and some of the ladies in the congregation.

The family of Mr. and Mrs. Magnus More gifted the pulpit Bible, and  many of the Pew Bibles—the remainder being given by others in the congregation in memory of their loved ones.

The “C.H.4” hymn books, being the version in current use, were given by various people in memory of their loved ones.

The framed picture on a stand to the right of the pulpit is  “CALMING THE STORM – CHRIST ON THE SEA OF GALILEE” which was painted(1994/1995) by Dr. Wagih Antonios, who was then an Anaesthetist in Caithness General Hospital

                                Stained Glass Windows (north side of west gable)

                               “O DEATH WHERE IS THY STING

This large stained glass window to the north side of the pulpit was  donated in 1880 in memory of Dr. Lillie (Minister 1844-1875).   It was damaged by gales in 1948, but was  repaired in 1978.   (can you spot the mistake in this window?).

                     “SAINT FERGUS   -   PATRON SAINT OF WICK”

Gifted (1961) by Dr. and Mrs. Ramsay in memory of her parents; her father, a Solicitor, who was Session Clerk here from 1920-1926.

                                     Stained Glass WINDOWS (north wall)

“JESUS WENT ABOUT HEALING”  

Donated in 1977 this window is in memory of Wm. Campbell (Town Gardener).

  

          “I  AM THE LIGHT OF THE WORLD” 

Donated by the family of  Mr Gavin Shearer (Blacksmith). 

                   “SUFFER THE LITTLE CHILDREN TO COME UNTO ME”

This was gifted in 1970 by Mrs. and Mr. Simon Fraser (Chartered Accountant) in memory of their young son who was tragically drowned.

                                     “I AM THE GOOD SHEPHERD”

Donated in 1961 by their daughter Sheila in memory of her mother and father.  Mr. Robertson(elder from 1929) was the rector of Wick High School.

The double doors lead out to the staircase and its chairlift.  To the right of these doors hangs the”Red Duster” the flag of the Merchant Navy and on the shelf below is an extensive record of all the ships on which men of Caithness lost their lives in WWII. This area was dedicated to their memory during a Merchant Navy Association Service in 2006.  The first two laid up flags are of the former Caithness Battalion of the Boys' Brigade.  The first two War Memorial brass plaques commemorate the men, from Wick Old Parish Church who lost their lives in the Great War(1914-1918). These plaques were unveiled in 1924 by General Lord Horne of Stirkoke,Commander of the British Artillery, in WWI. The small one remembers Lieutenant Mowat killed in France in W.W.1.  (He was a grandson of Dr. Lillie (Minister here 1844-1975)

The two small brass vases below these plaques were given by the McDonald family.                                                    

The dark rectangular plaque lists the names of the men lost from Wick Congregational Church in W.W. I. When the local Congregational Church closed in 1963 this congregation  was asked to accept their plaque “for all time”. The brass plaque, unveiled in 1953 records the names of all the men from Wick Old Parish Church who lost their lives during World War II.

 The double doors lead out on to the  south/east fire stairs and exit.  The cabinet above the electrical switch box contains four vases which donated by Wick Town Council to  commemorate the Quatercentenary (400years) of the Royal Burgh of Wick in 1989.  (two had been given to Bridge Street Church and two to Wick Old Parish Church).   The crystal glass vase was presented in 1998, to remember 800 years of the church in Wick, by the Right Reverend Professor Alan Main the Moderator of the General Assembly of the Church of Scotland. An exotic foreign shell was bequeathed to the church by Miss Betty   Mackenzie in memory of her great great grandfather Captain Munro Master of the Wick barque “BITTERN” which transported the timber, from the Baltic, used in the construction of this building. 

The White Ensign, the flag of the Royal Navy, was gifted Posthumously  by the Royal Navy in memory of the entire crew (189) of the destroyer   H.M.S. Exmouth sunk twenty miles off Wick by enemy action in January 1940.  The relatives of the crew formed an Association in 2001, the year the  wreck was found, and in 2005 gifted the large memorial plaque, the photograph of the ship, and the books etc.  18 of the crew are buried

in the War Graves section of Wick Cemetery and as a result  the Association recognizes

Wick St. Fergus Church as “Home” to all its members. The Association sends flowereach year in January, and two wreaths each Remembrance  Sunday- one for the church and the other for the cemetery. A school near Liverpool “adopted” the Exmouth and the montage on the south wall is a copy of a letter from one of the crew to a girl in that primary schoool.

Stained Glass Windows (South wall of the church)

                           “SAINT PETER THE FISHERMAN”

This window was gifted in memory of Mr. John Sutherland, (grocer), an elder for 54 years.

               “SING TO THE LORD WITH A CHEERFUL VOICE”

 The congregation and the church choir donated this window in 1961.

                 “St. CECILIA—THE PATRON SAINT OF MUSIC” 

Given in 1976 by the public and the congregation in memory of  Henry M. Rosie (Organist 1958—1976)

                         “THE SEED  IS THE WORD OF GOD”

Donated in 1972 by the family of Rev. W.N. Scott (Minister1956-1971).

                          Stained Glass windows (South side of West gable)

                                    “I AM THE KING OF GLORY”

The family of Rev. G. Moore (Minister 1932-1948) gifted this window

                 “HER CHILDREN ARISE AND CALL HER BLESSED”

This large stained glass window was given in 1878 in memory of  Mrs. Sinclair Wemyss of South Dunn, Watten. (the Wemyss family was one of the heritors (landowners) in the parish).

The piano and stool formerly  belonged to Henry M. Rosie (organist 1952 to1976) and were presented to the church by the family.  The oak chair was gifted in memory of the Anderson family in 1963.

 DOWNSTAIRS

In the foyer is a “half round” table, home to our church visitors book, (Be sure to sign it !! ). This table was donated by Albert Davidson of Sheerness, Kent in memory of his sisters who were regular attenders in this church.

In the church lounge are various photographs as well as a vestry table and bench gifted by Mr. and Mrs. James Shearer, Elgin. 1962.Pride of place is given to a large biscuit tin which was used to hold sugar during World War II.  Service personnel were invited to have a cup of tea after Sunday evening services, and although sugar was rationed this tin

was never empty from 1939 to 1945 earning its nickname “the magic tin”..

Going down the five steps, on to what was the original church floor, we first come to the creche room, which is used by the younger children during the   time of the service.  A good selection of toys is available for the children.(This room was fitted out from a donation by a family whose son was tragically  killed in a road accident.)

To the right of the corridor are the ladies and the gents toilets. To the  left is the small hall which features a complete set of images of the Ministers (from both churches in the 2009 union) from 1840 onwards.The Communion Table is engraved with the names of all those fromWick Bridge Street Church lost in World War I. The three chairs were gifted by the Girls Auxiliary of Wick Bridge Street Church in 1929.  The pedestal reading desk was gifted in memory of George Rosie.   (elder 1936)-a fisherman.

The fire door on the left leads out to the north/west fire exit.
 Going through to the large hall we see the remaining four Stained glass panelled windows which originally had been downstairs in the north wall of the church before the alterations carried out in 1994.

                 Stained glass windows ( North wall -starting at the west end.)

           “REMEMBER THE CREATOR IN THE DAYS OF THY YOUTH”

A gift from the Kirk Session in 1961, this window shows the Burning Bush with the St. Andrews Cross—the symbol of the Church of Scotland.

                                  “THE CHARITY OF DORCAS”

The Women's Guild donated this window in 1961.

                “SAINT ANDREW—PATRON SAINT OF SCOTLAND”

Given in 1961 by the family in memory of their mother and father, John MacLeod (a cooper).

                                    “THE MARRIAGE AT CANA”

The social committee raised the money for this window which was also  installed in 1961.

There is a plain glass rose window 1.5m. (5ft.) diameter, normally only

   seen from the outside, high up in the west gable.

Leaving the large hall, and continuing up into the foyer, on the  left is the Cradle Roll cabinet gifted in memory of Mrs. Janet Mowat.  The “teachers desk” type reading desk and matching oak chair were gifted by Mr. W. McAllan (elder 1961) in memory of the McAllan family.

Unseen, but heard every Sunday, is the 90cm. (3ft.) diameter 600kg.(12cwt) church bell made by John Warner & Sons London in 1865. We have no record of how or when it was installed but since 1965 it has been rung by means of a hammer, operated by an electric motor/gearbox and a cam, striking the rim of the bell.   

                                  THE  CHURCHYARD

The town cemetery was consecrated in 1872 but the last burial in the churchyard took place in 1934- that of a lady aged 101 who was entitled to be buried with her husband who had passed away in 1870 aged 37.

                                    THE  SINCLAIR  AISLE.

The building known as the Sinclair Aisle, is now thought to be a transept of the old Kirk of St. Fergus, which existed certainly post Reformation (1560). Visits by archaeologists from York University, here on a study of Castle Sinclair & Girnigoe, resulted in a suggestion from them that the stonework is the same as that employed in the construction of the castle, which has now  been re-dated to the 15th. Century. The crenellations and details added according to the will of the late Miss Sinclair of Stirkoke in 1835 are really

completely out of character with the original building.

                                      THE DUNBAR VAULT.

The external walls are in bull faced, or stylised rustic masonry of the 19th.century. It re-houses the original 18th.cent. mural memorial to the Dunbar's of Hempriggs. These memorials were probably removed from an even earlier Kirk. The Dunbar family were one of the heritors of the Parish    Church in the early years. The Arms are of Sir William Dunbar (died 1711)  and his wife Margaret Sinclair. There is a full range of “mementi mori” :- Father Time, Sexton's Tools, Winged Cherubs, all carved into Moray Sandstone and thought to have been the work of funereal sculptors who flourished around Elgin in the early 1700's

      In 1991, the Kirk Session and the then Minister Rev. R.S. Frizzell, advised
   the congregation the  rising  costs of maintaining both the church and the hall on 

   the opposite side of the High Street meant that the latter would have to be

   sold. It was planned to floor across the balcony back to the wall behind the

   pulpit- the resulting area to be used as the Sanctuary for weekly worship,

   leaving the original ground floor free to form a new hall, kitchen, toilets,

   creche and a smaller general purpose hall. These ideas, initially, met with

   some resistance, but it soon  became clear that no other option would solve

   these problems.

      The Rev. K. Warner, Minister of Halkirk and Westerdale, a former

   architect, was asked for his advice. He observed that the approach to the

   main entrance was on a downward slope and he commented “I rejoiced

   when they said unto me let us go UP to the House of God”. The approach

   to the church was reconstructed to an upward incline greatly reducing the

   number of steps to the new Sanctuary.

      Remembrance Sunday 1993 was the last service to be held in the “old”

   church building. Work started the following day.   The results were considered a great

   success. On Sunday the fifteenth of May 1994, with all work completed, the

   gathered congregation, led by one of the elders carrying the Bible, walked 

   in procession  from the hall across the street to the newly refurbished

   church for the service of re-dedication.

      The depiction of Jesus and the fishermen on the inner glass doors was

   created by the eminent glass engraver Mr Dennis Mann, who chose to use

   flora as found on the north head of Wick Bay. 

      The chairlift, behind the doors to the right, can accommodate either a

   person seated (is that right?) or a person in a wheelchair.   This, along with a disabled

   access toilet in the foyer on the same leve,l and the planned lift on the

   Sanctuary stairs due to be installed in 2013,  aid less mobile members of the congregation and visitors to the church.  

   From the foyer note how the wide staircase brings into focus the

   Communion Table, chairs, pulpit, and pipe organ framed by the

   beautiful tall stained glass windows. 

    As you arrive on the Sanctuary floor you become aware of just how wide the

   unsupported ceiling really is.
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      The Communion Table, and its three Chairs, were made locally in McEwens’

   furniture factory, and were gifted by the Henderson Family from Rosebank

   House, Wick in 1912 and 1924 respectively. The two large glass flower vases were gifted by the Anderson family from Louisburgh Street.

      The mellow two manual (with pedals) Pipe Organ was made by Wadsworth 

   Bros. of Manchester and was installed in 1883,  not many years after the

   General Assembly of the Church of Scotland decided that music could be

   used in their churches.

      The adjustable height reading desk in the pulpit was gifted in memory of 

   Alexander Robertson in 1929.  He was the rector of Wick High School and an elder of the church at the time.

      A variety of coloured pulpit falls and matching Bible markers were gifted by

   various members of the congregation to mark the passage of the liturgical

   year. The dust cover was made by  Mrs Rena Shearer, a Sunday School 

   teacher and choir member.

      In the 1960s and 1970s the stained glass panels in the surrounding windows,

   which allow lots of light to come in around them, were gifted by congregational

   members and organisations.

      The small Celtic Cross on the Communion Table was given by the late John
   Gray.

      The Wooden Font to the right of the Communion Table has a plate on it

   listing all those lost from Wick Bridge  Street Church during World War 2 

      The white stone Baptismal Font was gifted by the Wick Old Parish 

   Church Sunday School in 1934.

      The ancient (possibly14th century) stone Font from the old pre-Reformation

   (1560) Kirk of St. Fergus was restored to this church in 2011.

  The reading desk is in memory of Miss Sutherland, said to be the first 

  woman from Wick to become a graduate from a university.  She was a

   languages teacher, and long time Sunday School Teacher. The Bible on it

   was given in memory of elder and Session Clerk, Mr. T.L. Rosie in 1937.

      In the area above the main staircase is a mural depicting the “Raising

   of the Temple” by a local artist in 1994.
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     The two hymn boards on the pipe organ pillars were gifted in 1946 in

   memory of  the late Wm. Gillespie who was a deacon.   They are now used to show the 

   page numbers in the pew bibles from which the Bible readings are being taken for  services.

      The two clocks were gifted in memory of Wm. More who was an elder of the church and had been a well regarded Harbour Pilot.

      The hymn boards on either side of the church were given anonymously

   in 1994.

      The window vases were made by John O Groats Pottery and donated by the late

   Mrs. Margaret Clyne, Field Farm and some of the ladies in the congregation.

      The family of Mr. and Mrs. Magnus More gifted the pulpit Bible, and

   many of the pew bibles, the remainder being given by others in the

   congregation in memory of their loved ones.

      The “C.H.4” hymn books, in current use, were given by various people in

   memory of their loved ones.

      “CALMING THE STORM – CHRIST ON THE SEA OF GALILEE” was

   painted(1994/1995) by Dr. Wagih Antonios, then an Anaesthetist in Caithness

   General Hospital

                                           WINDOWS (north side of west gable)

                               “O DEATH WHERE IS THY STING”

      This large stained glass window to the north side of the pulpit was

   donated in 1880 in memory of Dr. Lillie (Minister 1844-1875).

   It was damaged by gales in 1948, but was  repaired in 1978.

   (Can you spot the mistake in this window?).

                     “SAINT FERGUS   -   PATRON SAINT OF WICK”

      Gifted (1961) by Dr. and Mrs. Ramsay in memory of her parents; her father,

   a Solicitor, was Session Clerk in Wick Old Parish Church from 1920-1926.
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                                        WINDOWS (north wall)

      “JESUS WENT ABOUT HEALING”  Donated in 1977 this window is in

   memory of Wm. Campbell (Town Gardener).

      “I  AM THE LIGHT OF THE WORLD” was given by the family of

   Mr. Gavin Shearer (Blacksmith). 

           “SUFFER THE LITTLE CHILDREN TO COME UNTO ME”

      This was gifted in 1970 by Mrs. and Mr. Simon Fraser (Chartered

   Accountant) in memory of their young son who was tragically drowned.

                           “I AM THE GOOD SHEPHERD”

      Donated in 1961 by their daughter Sheila in memory of her mother and

   father.  Mr. Robertson(elder from 1929) was the rector of Wick High School.

                                      ---------------------------

      The double doors lead out to the staircase and chairlift.                                                   

     To the right of these doors hangs the”Red Duster” the flag of the Merchant

   Navy, and on the shelf below is an extensive record of all the ships on

   which men of Caithness lost their lives in WW2. This area was dedicated

   to their memory during a Merchant Navy Association Service on 19th February 1996.

      The first two laid up flags are of the former Caithness Battalion of the   Boys' Brigade, the next two are the Queen's and Company colours of the   1st Wick Company, The Boys' Brigade.   Are there more flags?

      The first two War Memorial brass plaques commemorate the men, from 

   Wick Old Parish Church who lost their lives in the Great War(1914-1918). 

   These plaques were unveiled in 1924 by General Lord Horne of Stirkoke,

 W.W.1  Commander of the British Artillery.

      The small plaque remembers Lieutenant Mowat killed in France in W.W.1.

   (He was a grandson of Dr. Lillie (Minister here 1844-1975)

      The two small brass vases below these plaques were given by the

   McDonald family.
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      The dark rectangular plaque lists the names of the men lost from Wick
   Congregational Church in W.W. 1. When the local Congregational Church 

   closed in 1963 this congregation  was asked to accept their plaque 

   “for all time”.

      The brass plaque, unveiled in 1953,  records the names of all the men from

   Wick Old Parish Church who lost their lives during World War 2.

      The double doors lead out on to the  south/east fire stairs and exit.

      The cabinet above the electrical switch box contains four vases which

   commemorate the Quatercentenary (400years) of the Royal Burgh of Wick

   in 1989.  (two had been given to Bridge Street Church and two to Wick Old

   Parish Church).    Do we know who gave them?

      The crystal glass vase was presented in 1998, to remember 800 years

   of the church in Wick, by the Right Reverend Professor Alan Main, then

   Moderator of the General Assembly of the Church of Scotland.

      An exotic foreign shell was bequeathed to the church by Miss Betty

   Mackenzie in memory of her great great grandfather Captain Munro,

   Master of the Wick barque “BITTERN” which transported the timber,

   from the Baltic, used in the construction of this building. 

      The White Ensign, the flag of the Royal Navy, was gifted posthumously

   by the Royal Navy in memory of the entire crew (189) of the destroyer

   H.M.S. Exmouth sunk 20 miles off Wick by enemy action in January 1940.

      The relatives of the crew formed an Association in 2001, the year the 

   wreck was found, and in 2005 gifted the large memorial plaque,the

   photograph of the ship, and the books etc.. 18 of the crew are buried

   in the War Graves section of Wick Cemetery and thus the Association recognizes

   Wick St. Fergus Church as “Home” to all its members. The Association

   sends flowers to the church in  January each year, and two wreaths each Remembrance

   Sunday; one for the church and the other for the cemetery. A school near

   Liverpool “adopted” the Exmouth.  The montage on the south wall is a

   copy of a letter from one of the crew to a girl in that primary school.
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                                      WINDOWS (South wall of the church)

                           “SAINT PETER THE FISHERMAN”

      This window was gifted in memory of Mr. John Sutherland, (grocer), an

   elder for 54 years.

                “SING TO THE LORD WITH A CHEERFUL VOICE”

      The congregation and the church choir donated this window in 1961.

                 “St. CECILIA—THE PATRON SAINT OF MUSIC” 

      Given in 1976 by the public and the congregation in memory of 

   Henry M. Rosie (Organist 1958—1976)

                         “THE SEED  IS THE WORD OF GOD”

       Donated in 1972 by the family of Rev. W.N. Scott (Minister1956-1971).

                                   -----------------------------------

                                             WINDOWS (South side of West gable)

                                    “I AM THE KING OF GLORY”

      The family of Rev. G. Moore (Minister 1932-1948) gifted this window

                 “HER CHILDREN ARISE AND CALL HER BLESSED”

      This large stained glass window was given in 1878 in memory of 

   Mrs. Sinclair Wemyss of South Dunn, Watten. (Her family was one of the 

   heritors (landowners) in the parish).

                                  -----------------------------------
      The piano and stool which had belonged to Henry M. Rosie

   (organist 1952 to1976) were presented to the church by his family.

      The oak chair was gifted in memory of the Anderson family in 1963.

                                   ---------------------------------
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                                           DOWNSTAIRS

      In the foyer is a “half round” table, home to our church visitors book,

      (Be sure to sign it !! ).

   This table was donated by Albert Davidson of Sheerness, Kent in memory 

   of his sisters who were regular attenders in this church.

      In the church lounge are various photographs as well as a vestry table

   and bench gifted by Mr. and Mrs. James Shearer, Elgin. 1962.

      Pride of place is given to a large biscuit tin which was used to hold sugar

   during World War II.  Service personnel were invited to have a cup of tea

   after Sunday evening services, and although sugar was rationed this tin

   was never empty from 1939 to 1945 earning its nickname “the magic tin”..

      Going down the five steps, on to what was the original church floor, first on the left is the  creche,  used by younger children during the service.  A good selection of toys is available for them. 

   A donation by a family whose son was tragically

   killed in a road accident funded the kitting out of this room.

      To the right of the corridor are the ladies and the gents toilets, whilst to the

   left is the small hall which features a complete set of images of the

   Ministers from 1840 onwards including more recently of the two churches which united to become Wick St Fergus Church.

      The Communion Table is engraved with the names of all those from

   Wick Bridge Street Church lost in World War I.

      The three chairs were gifted by the Girls Auxiliary of Wick Bridge Street church  in 1929.

      The pedestal reading desk was gifted in memory of George Rosie

   (elder 1936)-a fisherman.

       The fire door on the left leads out to the north/west fire exit.
      Going through to the large hall we see the remaining four Stained glass

   panelled windows which originally had been downstairs in the north wall of

   the church before the alterations carried out in 1994.  
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                                              WINDOWS ( North wall -starting at the west end.)

           “REMEMBER THE CREATOR IN THE DAYS OF THY YOUTH”

      A gift from the Kirk Session in 1961, this window shows the Burning Bush

   with the St. Andrews Cross, the symbol of the Church of Scotland.

                                  “THE CHARITY OF DORCAS”

      The Women's Guild donated this window in 1961.

                “SAINT ANDREW—PATRON SAINT OF SCOTLAND”

      Given in 1961 by the family in memory of their mother and father,

   John MacLeod (a cooper).

                                  “THE MARRIAGE AT CANA”

      The social committee raised the money for this window which was also

   installed in 1961.

                             ----------------------------------------------

      There is a plain glass rose window 1.5m. (5ft.) diameter, normally only

   seen from the outside, high up in the west gable.

                              ----------------------------------------------

      Leaving the large hall, and continuing up into the foyer, on the 

   left is the Cradle Roll cabinet gifted in memory of Mrs. Janet Mowat.

      The “teachers desk” type reading desk and matching oak chair were

   given by Mr. W. McAllan (elder 1961) in memory of the McAllan family.

      Unseen, but heard every Sunday, is the 90cm. (3ft.) diameter 600kg.(12cwt)

   church bell made by John Warner & Sons London in 1865. We have no

   record of how or when it was installed but since 1965 it has been rung by

   means of a hammer, operated by an electric motor/gearbox and a cam,

   striking the rim of the bell.
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                                     THE  CHURCHYARD.

      The town cemetery was consecrated in 1872 but the last burial in the

   churchyard took place in 1934.  It was that of a lady aged 101 who was entitled

   to be buried with her husband who had passed away in 1870 aged 37.

                                    THE  SINCLAIR  AISLE.

      The building known as the Sinclair Aisle, is now thought to be a transept

   of the old Kirk of St. Fergus, which existed certainly post Reformation (1560).

   Archaeologists from York University, here on a study of Castle

   Sinclair & Girnigoe suggested that the stonework is the

   same as that employed in the construction of the castle, which has now

   been re-dated to the 15th century. The crenellations and details added

   according to the will of the late Miss Sinclair of Stirkoke in 1835 are 

   completely out of character with the original building.

                                      THE DUNBAR VAULT.

      The external walls are in bull faced, or stylised rustic masonry of the 19th   This vault contains the original 18th.cent. mural memorial to the Dunbar family

   of Hempriggs. These memorials were probably removed from an even

   earlier Kirk. The Dunbar family were one of the heritors of the Parish 

   Church in the early years. The arms are of Sir William Dunbar (died 1711)

   and his wife Margaret Sinclair. 

      There is a full range of “mementi mori” including Father Time, Sexton's Tools,

   Winged Cherubs, all carved into Moray Sandstone and thought to have been

   the work of funereal sculptors who flourished around Elgin in the early 1700's
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